MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE CABINET HELD ON WEDNESDAY, 15 JULY 2020

COUNCILLORS

PRESENT

Nesil Caliskan (Leader of the Council), Ian Barnes (Deputy Leader), Alev Cazimoglu (Cabinet Member for Health and Social Care), Guney Dogan (Cabinet Member for Environment and Sustainability), Rick Jewell (Cabinet Member for Children's Services), Nneka Keazor (Cabinet Member for Community Safety and Cohesion), Mary Maguire (Cabinet Member for Finance and Procurement), Gina Needs (Cabinet Member for Social Housing), George Savva MBE (Cabinet Member for Licensing and Regulatory Services) and Mahtab Uddin (Cabinet Member for Public Health)

Associate Cabinet Members (Non-Executive and Non-Voting): Mustafa Cetinkaya (Enfield South East), Ahmet Hasan (Enfield North), Katherine Chibah (Enfield West) and Ergin Erbil (Non geographical)

.

OFFICERS:

lan Davis (Chief Executive), Tony Theodoulou (Executive Director People), Fay Hammond (Acting Executive Director Resources), Sarah Cary (Executive Director Place), Jeremy Chambers (Director of Law and Governance), Matt Bowmer (Interim Director of Finance), Joanne Drew (Director of Housing and Regeneration), Doug Wilkinson (Director of Environment & Operational Services), Andrea De Lucy (Press and New Media Officer) and Clare Bryant (Senior Governance Officer) Jacqui Hurst (Secretary)

1 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

There were no apologies for absence. An apology for lateness was received from Councillor Ergin Erbil (Associate Cabinet Member).

2 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest.

3 DEPUTATIONS

Councillor Nesil Caliskan (Leader of the Council) advised Members that a deputation request to this meeting had been received which had been refused due to the length of the agenda under consideration.

4 MINUTES

AGREED, that the minutes of the previous meeting of the Cabinet held on 10 June 2020 be confirmed and signed by the Chair as a correct record.

5 CAPITAL OUTTURN 2019/20

Councillor Mary Maguire (Cabinet Member for Finance and Procurement) introduced the report of the Executive Director – Resources detailing the outturn position of the Council's 2019/20 Capital Programme.

- 1. That there were some minor changes to the paragraph numbers referred to in paragraphs 7, 8 and 9 of the report which were reflected in the decisions listed below.
- 2. That this was the fourth and final report of 2019/20, following similar monitoring reports as at Period 3 (Quarter 1), Period 6 (Quarter 2) and Period 8.
- 3. That at Period 8 (November), the forecast outturn position for 2019/20 across the General Fund and HRA was £215.4m. The actual outturn was £186.3m which represented 86% spend, compared to Period 8 forecast.
- 4. The report set out the total reprofiling of £19.3m on General Fund programmes and £10.0m on HRA programmes.
- 5. That 2020/21 was the first year of the Council changing to a 10 year capital programme which aligned with the 10 year Treasury management strategy.
- 6. That tables 1 and 2 of the report set out a summary outturn by Directorate and the capital outturn summary.
- 7. The general fund project outcomes as detailed in the report were highlighted which set out the significant investment in the Borough.
- 8. That table 3 of the report set out the variance analysis and Table 4 the Housing Revenue Account Capital Outturn. The main elements of the report were highlighted for Members and, it was noted that the Treasury Management Outturn report (detailed in Minute No.7 below)

included further information on the external borrowing used by the Council to finance a portion of the capital programme.

- 9. The projects included in the report to support the Council's actions to take climate change including the planting of 400 trees with more planned, flood alleviation works, the introduction of LED lighting onstreet, and low traffic neighbourhood initiatives.
- 10. Members welcomed the investment in supporting its most vulnerable residents and helping them experience a better quality of life at home.
- 11. The investment in education and creation of additional special education needs (SEN) places were highlighted, as set out in the report.
- 12. Members were also pleased to note the investment and significant progress in relation to Meridian Water as detailed in the report.

Alternative Options Considered: NOTED, that there were no alternative options relevant to this report.

DECISION: The Cabinet agreed to note

- 1. The total expenditure on the Capital Programme for 2019/20 was £186.3m, against the Period 8 forecast of £215.4m, as detailed from paragraph 13 of the report.
- 2. The total reprofiling of £19.3m on General Fund programmes and £10.0m on HRA programmes.
- 3. Project outcomes for the General Fund programmes from paragraph 24 of the report.
- 4. Variance analysis for the General Fund programmes from paragraph 91 of the report.
- 5. HRA Capital Outturn from paragraph 114 of the report.
- 6. Funding of the Council's capital expenditure for 2019/20 from paragraph 168 of the report.

Reason: To update Cabinet on the year end Capital Programme position, including project outputs.

(Key decision – reference number 5149)

6 REVENUE OUTTURN 2019/20

Councillor Mary Maguire (Cabinet Member for Finance and Procurement) introduced the report of the Executive Director – Resources setting out the revenue outturn position for 2019/20.

- 1. That the report set out the overall General Fund Revenue; Housing Revenue Account (HRA) and Dedicated Schools Grant outturn for 2019/20, with details of variations provided in the Appendices of the report. A summary of the year end reserves and balances position was set out in detail in Appendix J of the report.
- 2. The general fund revenue outturn position set out in the report and summarised in Table 1.
- 3. The trend of improvements in budget setting as noted in paragraphs 20 and 21 of the report. Improved budget setting had reduced the reliance of the Council on capital receipts to manage this position.
- 4. The detailed explanation of significant budget variations summarised in the report and Appendices B to E of the report. Members noted the continuing budget pressures being faced.
- 5. The flexible use of capital receipts detailed in the report and in Appendix G of the report. Enfield had chosen this flexibility to fund a number of transformation projects in the last four years (paragraph 86 of the report referred).
- 6. That the year end position for the Housing Revenue Account (HRA) had changed to a £3.2m positive variance which had been moved into HRA reserves.
- 7. The outturn position for the Dedicated Schools Grant as detailed in the report and Appendix I.
- 8. That the Council's General Fund reserves had remained stable, Members' attention was drawn to the detailed information on the earmarked reserves in the report and summarised in Appendix J of the report. The Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) and school balances had large in-year deficits of £5.6m and £4.0m leading to an overall deficit of £7.7m. A plan to bring the DSG funded services into surplus and a strategy to work with schools in financial difficulty was underway (paragraph 111 of the report referred).
- 9. That the reserves overall were limited, especially in view of the challenging savings targets for 2021/22 and 2022/23. It was important to maintain a tight control on spend, deliver existing savings plans and recover lost income positions due to Covid-19, as highlighted in the report.

- 10. Regarding the Collection Fund, Council Tax had recorded a £5.3m loss at 31 March 2020 due to collection levels falling below budgeted targets. The negative economic impact of the Covid-19 pandemic as set out in the report was highlighted. The effect on the council tax collection rates and expected fall in business rate income were noted.
- 11. That the Medium-Term Financial Strategy also referred, as detailed in Minute No.8 below. The Council would continue to lobby the Government for the funding pledged in dealing with the pandemic.
- 12. That the report set out in detail the revenue outturn position and a clear approach going forward. The outturn position demonstrated the robustness of the Council's financial monitoring.
- 13. That in response to the coronavirus pandemic, the statutory deadlines regarding the Statement of Accounts had been extended to September. Members were assured that the annual statement of accounts was on track to meet this deadline.
- 14. In response to questions raised, Members discussed the steps being taken to address the DSG and school balances deficit and to focus on Schools that had the most significant deficits, as set out in the report. The situation would continue to be closely monitored. The negative impact on Schools' income due to the pandemic was highlighted, for example through the hiring out of school halls. It was noted that the Government would not be funding any such loss of income. The difficult financial climate was recognised together with the work being undertaken by the Council to address the issues outlined in the report.

Alternative Options Considered: NOTED, that there were no alternative options relevant to this report.

DECISION: The Cabinet agreed to note the General Fund, Housing Revenue Account (HRA) and Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) revenue outturn position for 2019/20.

Reason: To ensure that Members were aware of the outturn position for the authority, including all major variances which had contributed to the outturn position.

(Key decision – reference number 5151)

7 ANNUAL TREASURY MANAGEMENT OUTTURN REPORT 2019/20

Councillor Mary Maguire (Cabinet Member for Finance and Procurement) introduced the report of the Executive Director – Resources outlining the activities of the Council's Treasury Management function during the 2019/20 financial year.

- 1. The key points of the report as highlighted including the borrowing outstanding, the capital financing requirement, average interest rates and investments and net borrowing. The Council had adopted the CIPFA Code (paragraph 7 of the report referred) which required the Council to approve treasury management half yearly and annual reports.
- 2. The information summarised in the report was outlined to Members including the borrowing update, capital financing requirement, cost of borrowing and investments as detailed in report. As at 31 March 2020 the Council held £986.9m of loans, an increase of £142.1m to previous year closing balance which was due to the Council's funding strategy for its capital programme. Outstanding loans on 31 March 2020 were summarised in Table 3 of the report and included loans that had been made to the Council's companies, as set out in the report.
- 3. The economic background set out in the report including references to the coronavirus pandemic and Brexit.
- 4. The interest rate information and factors regarding the Public Works Loan Board as detailed in the report.
- 5. The proposals set out in the report and reflected in the decisions below and recommendations to Council.
- 6. That the Annual Treasury Management Outturn report demonstrated the sound financial management of the Council with prudent investments that would seek to improve the lives of the Borough's residents. The Council's Section 151 Officer, the Executive Director Resources, confirmed that over the reporting year all treasury management activities had been carried out in accordance with the approved limits and, the prudential indicators set out in the Council's Treasury Management Strategy statement.

Alternative Options Considered: None, not appropriate for this report.

DECISION: Cabinet agreed to

- 1. Note and comment on the contents of the report, as detailed above.
- 2. Recommend the 2019/20 Treasury Management Outturn report to Council.
- 3. Recommend to Council to approve the removal of 75% cap on total aggregate investments in money market funds (MMFs).
- 4. Recommend to Council to approve new money limit of £25m for each eligible counter party (Bank and MMF) meeting the Council's current criteria for high quality institution.

Reason: To inform Council of the Treasury Management performance for the financial year 2019/20.

(Key decision – reference number 5152)

8 MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL STRATEGY 2021/22 TO 2025/26

Councillor Mary Maguire (Cabinet Member for Finance and Procurement) introduced the report of the Executive Director – Resources setting out how the Council would allocate its resources over the medium term to deliver the Council's objectives during a period of both huge uncertainty and financial challenge.

- 1. That the Council had agreed a five-year Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP) covering the period 2020/21 to 2024/25 at Council in February 2020. This report updated the assumptions from that time and set out the Strategy for agreeing the 2021/22 Budget and the MTFP for 2021/22 to 2025/26. The Council was now in a totally different position due to the impact of the coronavirus pandemic and the challenging times ahead were highlighted. The Council had a sound financial position and balanced budget in February. Paragraphs 18, 19 and 20 of the report provided an update on the MTFP assumptions. A best case assumption had been drawn which opened the year one gap to £18.613 and with the rolling forward of the Plan to 2025/26 there was a five year gap of £58.594m. The refresh of the financial assumptions was detailed in full in section 5 of the Plan. The funding gap arising from the cost of dealing with the pandemic and the Government funding received was highlighted. The in year response to financial pressures arising from Covid-19 was set out in section 6 of the Strategy.
- 2. The difficulty in accurately forecasting the impact on Council Tax income due to the ongoing issue of a significant number of residents being furloughed and the potential rise in unemployment rates and, the impact on businesses in the Borough.
- 3. In addition to the uncertainty of the ongoing economic impact of the pandemic, Members noted the continuing need for fairer funding from the Government and the demographic pressures being faced by the Council as set out in the report and Strategy. The Council would continue to lobby the Government on funding issues, as set out in decision 6 below.
- 4. The approach being taken to the identification of savings detailed in the report and reflected in the decisions below. Further reports would be presented to Cabinet in due course.

- 5. That Members and Officers were continuing to work hard to continue to support its most vulnerable residents.
- 6. The significance of the economic situation and the resulting instability in the local economy which would require the Council to provide and increased level of support to the Borough's vulnerable residents. The pressures on local government finances was highlighted together with the need for the Government to honour its funding commitments to Councils.
- 7. The significant and continuing pressures on the provision of Adult Social Care, the demographic factors in the Borough and the statutory duties to meet. Members acknowledged the challenges in continuing to support its vulnerable residents. Additional costs had been incurred during the pandemic, for example, in the provision of personal protective equipment (PPE) and the testing facilities required.
- 8. That the pressures were being faced across London Councils and they would lobby the Government for adequate funding to meet service pressures and demands, as detailed in the report.
- 9. The Executive Director Resources outlined Enfield's funding position including the historical underfunding by Government through the damping mechanism. The Council had worked hard to maintain a robust and resilient budget. The Council would continue to lobby the Government and would continue to undertake benchmarking with other local authorities.
- 10. The MTFS was a comprehensive and important document.

Alternative Options Considered: None appropriate to this report.

DECISION: The Cabinet agreed to

- 1. Endorse the Medium-Term Financial Strategy.
- 2. Actively lobby Government to bring forward Fair Funding and the Business Rates reset.
- 3. Actively lobby Government to reform Adult Social Care funding.
- 4. Promote engagement in the 2021 Census.
- 5. Note the funding gap of £18.613m for 2021/22 and of £58.594m across the five year medium term.
- 6. Note the current shortfall in funding from Government to meet the financial cost to the Council of responding to the Covid-19 crisis and continue to lobby Government to meet these costs in full.

- 7. Delegate authority to the Leader of the Council in consultation with the relevant portfolio holder to approve in year savings ahead of the September meeting of Cabinet.
- 8. Instruct the Acting Executive Director of Resources to bring a report to the September meeting of Cabinet providing an update on the 2020/21 financial year.
- 9. Agree the approach to develop savings and income generation proposals across the medium term.
- 10. Note the need for scenario planning and identification of savings options for best, moderate and worst case positions and the potential for significant service reductions should further government support fail to materialise.

Reason: To ensure the Council meets its statutory duty to set a balanced budget in February 2021.

(Key decision – reference number 5150)

9 QUARTERLY CORPORATE PERFORMANCE REPORT (QUARTER 4)

Councillor Ian Barnes (Deputy Leader) introduced the report of the Executive Director – Resources presenting the quarterly report on the Corporate performance scoreboard reflecting the Council priorities.

NOTED

- 1. That the report reflected the Council priorities as outlined in the new Council Business Plan for quarter four performance for 2019/20 covering January to March 2020. The next report would cover the period of the pandemic and its impact on the performance indicators.
- 2. That Appendix 2 to the report focused on a selection of priority key performance indicators that were underperforming and had detailed action plans in place. It was noted that the Customer Service performance had improved significantly. The positive progress on the highlighted indicators was noted as set out in the report. Quarterly meetings would continue to monitor the action plans and progress made. Members noted the actions and performance to date.
- 3. The challenging area of temporary accommodation provision and the two reports to be considered by the Cabinet on the way forward (as detailed in Minute Nos. 10 and 11 below).

Alternative Options Considered: Not to report regularly on the Council's performance in a public report. This would make it difficult to assess progress made on achieving the Council's main priorities and to demonstrate the value for money being provided by council services.

DECISION: The Cabinet agreed to note, for information only, the progress being made towards delivering the key priority indicators for Enfield.

Reason: The report was part of the quarterly timetable for Cabinet to review performance.

(Non key)

10 HOMELESSNESS IN ENFIELD 3

Councillor Gina Needs (Cabinet Member for Social Housing) introduced the report of the Executive Director – Place presenting the third report to Cabinet on Homelessness in Enfield.

- 1. That this report set out the Council's approach to ensuring that residents had access to properties from a wide range of tenures from social rent to shared ownership.
- The proposals set out in the report to support the Council's objectives of preventing homelessness, reshaping the housing market including through the introduction of an ethical lettings agency by Housing Gateway Ltd. and the private sector licensing scheme. The range of support initiatives being provided were outlined as detailed in the report.
- 3. That the policies would enable the Council to support residents in accessing the right accommodation for them through a range of options, and in so doing provide long-term support and reduce the use of temporary accommodation.
- 4. Members welcomed the detailed report which demonstrated the Council's commitment to the prevention of homelessness in the Borough.
- 5. In response to questions raised, Members were advised of the consultation responses that had been received and the range of respondents engaged which was a good representation of residents in the Borough.
- 6. That living rooms would not be counted as bedrooms in the policy.
- 7. That the allocations scheme was a core part of the Council's homelessness strategy and its aim was to be a fair and honest policy for residents in housing allocations. The importance of the provision of good quality housing was highlighted.

- 8. The negative impact that the pandemic had had on individuals through rising unemployment and the increased risk of homelessness. The Council would continue to seek to prevent homelessness and seek to provide sustainable housing options. In doing so, the importance of maintaining decent housing standards was highlighted.
- 9. The Council would continue to work with its partners to take an early intervention approach through a range of options, as set out in the report, and so continue to reduce the number of households placed in temporary accommodation.
- 10. In considering the report, the work of the Poverty and Reducing Inequality Board was highlighted and how this report would help support the recommendations of the Board, which the Leader of the Council chaired.
- 11. A discussion took place on the provision of housing options for key workers in the Borough, including the estate regeneration developments and discussions with North Middlesex University Hospital; the importance of affordable housing provision was highlighted.

Alternative Options Considered: NOTED, the following alternative options that had been considered:

Allocations: The primary option considered was to continue with the current approach. This would see an increasing number of households staying in temporary accommodation for long periods. This would also prevent the Council from being able to assist other groups in need.

Placement Policy: The Placement Policy codifies the approach to the use of the private rented sector. The transformation programme was based on making best use to the private rented sector. Without a formally approved policy there was a risk of legal challenge.

DECISION: The Cabinet agreed to

- 1. Recommend approval of the Allocations Scheme, as set out in Appendix 1 of the report to full Council.
- 2. Approve the Placement Policy for temporary accommodation and private rented sector offers, as set out in Appendix 2 of the report.
- 3. Approve the Intermediate Housing Policy as set out in Appendix 3 of the report.
- 4. Delegate authority to the Cabinet Member for Social Housing to approve minor amendments to the Allocations Scheme, Placement Policy and Intermediate Housing Policy.

Reason: The proposals outlined represent a shift in focus and investment in the prevention of homelessness and support for residents to proactively

reduce the number of households reaching crisis point (paragraphs 13 - 16 of the report referred).

(Key decision – reference number 4682)

11 ROUGH SLEEPERS LOCAL DELIVERY PLAN

Councillor Gina Needs (Cabinet Member for Social Housing) introduced the report of the Executive Director – Place seeking approval of the local delivery plan for rough sleepers and to support the Council's efforts to secure funding to deliver the plan.

- 1. The requirement for all rough sleepers to be accommodated at the start of the Covid-19 pandemic as set out in the report. The Council had provided approximately 290 rough sleepers with emergency accommodation since March 2020.
- 2. The positive and significant support that had been provided to the individuals involved.
- 3. That approval was being sought to the Local Delivery Plan for rough sleepers and to support the Council's efforts to secure funding to deliver the Plan, as detailed in the report. Members noted the significant financial costs and pressures being faced as set out in the report. The Council would continue to lobby the Government for funding to meet the costs incurred to date and the requirements going forward.
- 4. The wide range of different support needs and the difficulties being faced, including for those people with no recourse to public funds, and, those with significant health issues, as outlined in the report. This Plan represented a once in a lifetime opportunity to effectively end rough sleeping in the borough.
- 5. That this Plan would enable the Council to provide support for those vulnerable residents who it may not have been possible to engage with previously. It was hoped that long-term accommodation could be facilitated for those in need, as outlined in detail in the Plan.
- 6. In response to questions raised, Members were advised of the approximate number of people still rough sleeping in the Borough who had rejected offers of help from the council to date.
- 7. The measures being implemented by the Council, as previously considered, to support non-priority single people in their housing needs.

Alternative Options Considered: NOTED that the alternative options would be:

- 1. To simply end the provision of accommodation. This would see the majority returning to rough sleeping and the re-establishment of encampments across the borough. This option had been ruled out as unacceptable.
- 2. To continue the existing arrangements. The costs of this would be significantly higher than moving people into other forms of housing and would mean placing people out of borough for an extended period.

DECISION: The Cabinet agreed

- 1. The approach on the support and accommodation of rough sleepers.
- 2. To support the efforts to secure funding to implement the plan.
- 3. To support efforts to secure government policy change as set out in paragraphs 30 and 31 of the report

Reason: To approve the Local Delivery Plan for rough sleepers and to support efforts to secure funding to deliver the plan, for the reasons detailed in the report.

(Key decision – reference number 5166)

12 ADOPTION OF THE ENFIELD CLIMATE ACTION PLAN

Councillor Ian Barnes (Deputy Leader) introduced the report of the Executive Director – Place providing an overview of Enfield's Climate Action Plan and seeking approval for its adoption.

- 1. That the Enfield Climate Action Plan had been prepared in response to the Council's previous declaration of a climate emergency with the aim of making Enfield Council a carbon neutral organisation by 2030. The Plan was innovative and ambitious and the significant work that has been undertaken to date was acknowledged.
- That, as detailed in the report, a Climate Change Task Force had been set up to support the Council in managing its response to the declared climate emergency.
- The range of challenging but deliverable actions as detailed in the Plan. Examples, including, a programme to retrofit streetlamps with LED bulbs; the development of low traffic neighbourhoods, school streets, reforestation in northern Enfield, electrification of our fleet and new ways of working.

- 4. The Council is prepared for multiple energy futures with leading experience in heat pump technology, decentralised energy through our company Energetik and the ambition to aim for standards such as Passivhaus.
- 5. That the Plan set out targets and actions for the Council and the Borough as a whole. The Council had already made its commitment to climate change clear and a number of the actions set out in the Plan had already been funded, for example, Energetik, LED lights on-street and new woodlands. Some actions would require additional resources and funding from within the Council, while others would need external funding, particularly from central and regional government.
- 6. The Climate Action Plan would influence other Council plans and strategies. The progress of the Plan would be closely monitored and regularly reported on.
- 7. The brief positive impact that the Covid 19 pandemic had had on carbon emissions with the use of fewer private vehicles and increased walking and cycling.
- 8. That, the majority of actions in the Climate Action Plan revolve around our ambitious borough wide Net Zero emissions target for 2040. This is a full decade ahead of the national target.
- 9. That the next planned engagement event would a virtual launch of the Enfield Climate Action Plan in the summer. A key part of delivering the Action Plan was an extensive long-term engagement programme with all stakeholders, as set out in the document. The Plan had been guided by the Climate Change Task Force and developed with input from across the Council. It had been informed by engagement with climate change organisations and the public. The report sought approval to delegate responsibility for implementation of the Plan to the Executive Director Place in consultation with the relevant Cabinet Member, as set out in the decision below.
- 10. That thanks and appreciation were expressed to the officers involved in the development of the Plan, and to the local groups and residents for their valuable input and feedback to the consultation.
- 11. That the Action Plan was comprehensive, ambitious and deliverable. The Council would continue to consult and work with its partners, interested groups and residents. Tribute was paid to the work that had been carried out to date by the Climate Change Task Force.
- 12. The proposal to retrofit the Council's housing stock as set out in the Plan, and the significant cost of this work. It was noted that this would require substantial financial Government intervention. A trial has been introduced by Government but it was acknowledged that this should be much more extensive and wide-ranging if the UK is to meet its Net Zero

target. The Council would continue to lobby Government for funding in order to implement and meet the targets set out in the Plan.

- 13. The detailed Borough-wide emissions as set out in the Plan. It was noted that 39% came from Transport on our roads, whereas in contrast, for example, only 0.7% of total UK emissions are from energy from waste in London. It was acknowledged that everyone should help support a significant reduction in transport emissions. The transport policies contained in the Plan would have a significant influence, including for example, low traffic neighbourhoods, to encourage more walking and cycling, school streets, a future electric vehicle charging policy and electrification of our fleet. It was noted that progress in the further use and development of electric fleet vehicles was also dependent on scientific developments as well as funding requirements.
- 14. The introduction of a new Council Environment Forum and the important role that it would have regarding Climate Change issues. As set out in the Plan, Members noted the proposals to divest the Council's pension fund from investment in fossil fuel companies. Members acknowledged that the Pension and Investment Committee is a wholly independent committee with a fiduciary duty. The representations made and questions that had been raised by Divest Enfield regarding this issue. In response, it was noted that a report was due to be considered at the forthcoming meeting of the Council's Pension, Policy and Investment Committee. Following that meeting a response would be made to the issues raised by Divest Enfield. The significant amount of work to be undertaken was acknowledged but that more needed to be done to provide detailed targets on how the committee will fully divest by 2025.
- 15. That the Council would continue to drive for progress and achievement of the targets as set out in the Plan and would ensure that progress and developments were communicated to the residents of the Borough.
- 16. That active engagement with all groups involved would continue. All Council reports now included environmental and climate change considerations. The Climate Change Task Force would continue to meet on a regular basis, with a virtual launch of the Action Plan scheduled for the Summer.

Alternative Options Considered: None, the Council had committed to tackling the climate change emergency, to do this required a clear strategy with supporting actions.

DECISION: The Cabinet agreed to

Adopt the Enfield Climate Action Plan.

- 2. Delegate responsibility for implementation of the Enfield Climate Action Plan to the Executive Director Place in consultation with the relevant Cabinet Member.
- 3. Note that whilst a number of the actions in the Enfield Climate Action Plan were already funded, many others would require new funding commitments, including from central and regional government, and there would be full consideration of the financial implications as workstreams were progressed.

Reason: The Enfield Climate Action Plan defines the scale of the Council's existing carbon emissions and sets out a challenging but deliverable set of actions to reach the target of zero emissions by 2030 (as detailed in the report).

(Key decision – reference number 5136)

13 CABINET AGENDA PLANNING - FUTURE ITEMS

NOTED, for information, the provisional list of items scheduled for future Cabinet meetings.

14 DATES OF FUTURE MEETINGS

NOTED, that Cabinet meetings were scheduled to take place on Wednesday 5 August 2020 and Wednesday 16 September 2020 at 7.15pm.

(Note: The August meeting has been cancelled).